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Ms. Morris dated O'Keefe berween the months January of 2008 o September of
2008, She met him ar Atizona Charie’s. She testifies that she came back from 2 trip and
starting see him. They conveérsed a lor on the phone, Id. ar p, 121, Ms. Morsis started to
spend nights at his dwelling. At the nme, she lived with her friend, Dorothy Robe. O'Keete
lived in a trailer on a friend’s property whose name was Troy. J& at p. 122, Ms. Morris
identified O'Keefe in the courtroom. She tesdfies that she had a romandc relationship with
him. Id. ar p. 123,

Ms. Morris knew Victoria Whitmarsh was a former lover of OPKeete's, from back in
2001, She leamed that he had called her while they were at his trailer. [ ac p. 124. O’Keefc
told Ms. Morris that Victoria was calling to clear her conscience. She restdfied that that was
not the first tdme hearing about Ms. Whitgnarsh, 14 at p. 125, Something happened with
(’Keefe and his friend, so he moved in with Ms. Morris at Dorothy’s house, Her daughter
was also living with her, At times, the defendant would ofien consume aleohol. I atp. 126,

Ms. Morns testifies that O'Keefe would drink undl intoxicaton. While he was living
with Ms. Morns, he would talk abour how angry he was with Victoria. She put him in prison
for testifying that he burt her. /4 at p. 127, O'Keefe rold Ms. Mortis he wanted to kil
Victoria for taking 3 years of his life. When first malking about Victoria, he was sad, but then
he would become more upset. From there, he would just start drinking and become
outraged. Id at p. 128,

O’keete told Ms. Mortis he was in Grenada and the government taught him how to

kill. He even demonsirated how vo kill someone with a knife. 14 at p. 129. Ms. Morris stated
18
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that O'Keefe said he liked Vicroria because she was submissive. She tesnfied thar he always
wanted her to go to sleep with him, even when she was not tred. Vicroria did the same. Id.
at . 130,

Toward the end of their relagonship, Ms. Mortis wstfies it became rocky. O'Keefe
was inconsistent with coming home, | le had stayed with Vicroria for 2 week at one point. 4.
at p. 131. Ms. Morris states that O’Keefe had suggested they look for an aparment. She
wanted o establish residence for herself and O’Keete somewhere clse undl she was able 1o
get out. Jd at p. 132 They bought an aparment on 5001 El Parque Avenue. She was only
there for four days. ('Keefe staved there off-and-on, but one day never came back. Id at p.
133, Ms. Maorris did not want Victoria coming to the aparmment. She testifies that she called a
friend to pick her up, and she left, Jd, atp, 134,

Mr. Lalli presents proposed State’s Exhibir 2 for identificadon, Ms. Morris recognizes
it as the apariment they lived at. The court admitted it into evidence. He presents proposed
Stare’s Exhihit 1 for idendfication and she recognizes it as the apartment layout. I at p. 135.
The Court admitted proposed State’s Exhibit 1. Id at p. 136. Ms. Morris identifies an open
door to her apartment in Stare’s Exhibic 2. She tesdfies she became aware (PKeefe was
arrested in connection with the murder of Vicrona Whitmarsh on Novemnber 68, 2008, 14 ar
p. 137,

Ms. Morrs received a call before then from (’Keefe, ('Keefe wanted to see her and
satd Victoria would not mind her coming over. She srated she was not sure if he wanted a
platonic relanonship, or o rekindle whar they had, Id, at p, 138, O'Keefe suggested having a

threesome with Victoria and Cheryl,
1%
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O'Keefe steps up for cross-examinaton. 2 ar p. 139. Ms. Morris tesdfied (O'Keefe
was honest with her about the phone call he received an Father’s Day of 2008, J4 ac p. 140.
O'Keefe had wld her he did not think it was right to lie o her. Ms. Morrs states that
O’Keefe did not share with her that he was on parole when they mew I4 atp. 141,

Ms, Morris testtied O’Keete mentoned he went to prison because Yictoria testified
against him in the bawery domestc violence case later on. fd ar p. 142, Ms. Morris
remembers (FKeefe telling her distinedy that Vietotia testified against him at that trial.

Ms., Morns tesotied that she cosigned for a car for him. 4 at p. 144, They had 2 bank
account topether, and Ms. Morns took herself off of i Id at p. 145,

Ms. Morns does not recall having a discussion with Jimmy Hathcox and "them.” She
does not remember going back to the aparoment a few days after the teagedy. 14 2t p. 146.
Onutside Presence of Jury:

The defendant asked Cheryl Mortis a2 quesdon regarding whether she ever told
another witness the defendant had never been violent toward her. Mr. Lalli seates she
described to him several dmes he had been violent One incident was in his wailer, another
was in a car where O'Keefe was drinking Vodka. Id at p. 148, The Court disregarded the
queston and answer. O'Kecfe opened the door o a history of violence with Ms. Mords. Id.
at p. 149. The Couort informs Mr, (PKeefe not w open the door (o that violence, to be
careful. 14 arp. 152.

Judge Villani allowed the State to go into the facts and circumstances of this case.
O'Keefe stated that Judge Villani ordered the State not to call an expert wimess on domestic

viclence. The court allowed Ms. Greene's testimnony because they do not have the order. 14
20
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at p. 155, Mr. Lalli indicared there was never 2 moton o soke the notce of experts, and he
was not aware of any order. fd at p. 156, Mr. Lalli stated Judge Villani never entered such an
order. fd at p. 158, O’Keete’s motion ro nor allow the expert was thus denied. Id. at p. 159.

The court stated that there was no intention for Judge Villani o dodge this case. Id at
p- 161, O'Keete argues that Judge Villani had evervone under the assumption he would sit at
the trial on Monday herein, but inswead Senior Judge Bonaventure appeared, [d at p. 162,
The court noted that {)'Keefe’s objection on the record was preserved.

Witness Joyce Toliver's Testimony:

She is married to Chatles Toliver, also known as “Cookie”, Id. at p. 164, Mrs. Toliver
currently resides at 1013 North Jones Blvd, Las Vegas, Nevada. She resided at 5001 El
Parque in November of 2008 in the bottom floor apartment 29, She was there for 14 years.
Id at p. 163,

Mrs. Toliver recognizes Stare’s Exhibir 2 as the apartment complex. Jd at p. 166. Mrs.
Toliver was familiar with peaple who resided directly above them. f2 at p, 167, She testified
that (O’Keefe had a young lady with him on the night of the tragedy. She describes her as
petite with light blond hair, I at p. 168,

Ms. Mercer presents Stawe’s Exhibir 1, which Mrs. Toliver recognizes as the
apartment layout. Id. at p. 169. At 9pm on November 53, 2008, Mrs. Toliver was watching
TV in her bedroom with her hushand, All of a sudden a lor of “ruckus” was coming from
upstairs. 4 at p. 170. Mrs. Toliver warned the TV up after initially hearing the aoises, but the
noise upstairs was getting louder, and she heard 2 woman crying, Id at p. 171. It went on for

about an hour, with the noise quieting down at a little atter 10:00 o'clock. Jd ar p. 172,
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Mr. Toliver was awoken by the noises. He ok a broom to the ceiling and it stopped
for a second or two, but then resumed. I at p. 173, When Mr, Toliver left the apartment,
the noise had died down, bur she heard 2 loud moan from the woman who was crying
before. fd at p. 174, When her husband came back downstairs, his eyes were big and he
looked shocked. Jd at p. 175. The police arrived about 15-20 minutes after Mr. Toliver came
back into the apartment and indicted something concerned him. Id at p. 176.

On Cross-examination, Mrs. Toliver restified she heard no screaming or yelling, After
her husband came back, he went back out again into the corndor where evervone was, 14 at
P 177, Mrs. Toliver never heard O'Keefe ralking, and she has probably talked o his
neighbor, Jimmy, at one dme or another after the tragedy. Id. at p. 178,

Chasles Edward Toliver's Testimony:

Charles Edward Toliver testfied that he is married to the previous witness, Joyce
Toliver and they have lived ar 5001 El Parque for 13 years, Mr, Taoliver identifies what was
once his upstairs neighbor, O’Keefe, in the courtroom. Id at p, 181,

At 930 10 10:00 pm on November 5%, 2008, Mr, Toliver was asleep and abruptly
awoken by banging on the ceiling. His wifc told him the noisc had been going on for a while.
He resnficd he went to the kitchen, got the broom, came back and hit the celling, The noise
stopped for 2 minute, but resumed, so he proceeded to go upstairs, Id ag p. 182,

The upstairs apartment door was open, (FKeefe was asking him to come into the
bedroom, saying she would not wake up, Mr, Toliver srated he saw blood on the bed while
standing at the bedroom door and he left the apartment. Id at p. 183. Mr. Toliver tesufied

he also saw 2 handle to 2 knife and Victoria’s legs. Ms. Mercer presents proposed State’s
22
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Exhibit 22, which accurately depicts what Mr, Toliver had seen, Jd at p. 184. The Court
admitted Exhibit 22 and allowed it to be published. Mr. Toliver’s tesdfied that che locagon
of the handie was close to the pillow. I4 arp. 183

Mr, Toliver hollered for help after leaving O'Keefe's aparmment, telling sameone to
call the police. This drew people cutside. Mr. Toliver testified he told Todd, the aparmment
maintenance man, what happened when he came out. Id at p. 186. When they both went up
to apartment 33, the door was still open. They went to the bedroom door, Id arp, 187,

Mr. Toliver testified (’Keefe told them to “get the hell out™ He does not reeall
(’Keefe being physically aggressive with Todd, in part because he was sitting on the toor,
}d at p. 188,

Mr. Toliver testified thar O’Keefe was holding Victoria, kind of rocking her. He
recalls him relling her to, “Wake up, don’t do me like this” fd ar p. 189, The defendant
never asked fot help, or for them 1o call the police. Mr. Toliver testified O'Keefe had a scary
lock on his face. Mr. Toliver told the police exactly the same information as conrained in his
restimony here, /1 atp. 190,

Ms. Mercer presented the witness with his taped statement. He only remembers
O’Keete telling Todd to get out. Id at p. 191. Ms. Mereer shows Me. Toliver page 17 of his
statement, and it refreshes his memory, Jd, at p. 192, He told police O’Keefe drew back at
Todd. 14,

(¥Keefe asked Mr. Toliver to read half way down page 7 of his recorded statement to
police. Id ar p, 194, Mr, Tolicer testifies he remembers (O'Keefe telling him to come in hete,

she will not wake up. He agrees the apartment was just like his apartment Id ar p. 195,
23
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There was no light fixture. He states the ooly light came from the bathroom. He cestifies
O’Keefe had her lying in his lap, saying “wake up.” Id at p. 196.

A jury member wanted to know if, “when entering the defendant’s room, could you
tell if he was intoxicated, dmunk?” Mr. Toliver testified he ¢ould not tell.
Ji Hathoox's Testi g

Jimmy latheox testified he lived upstairs at 5001 El Parque November 5 of 2008.
Mr. Hathcox recopnizes State’s Exhibit 2 a5 unit 36, He worked maintenance at the complex.
Id a1 p. 199, Mr. Hatheox knew his naghbor, O'Keefe, and idendfied him in the courtroom.
He testified to sometimes secing him oumide his apartment. Id at p. 200. Mr. [latheox
sometime saw (O’Keefe hanging out, or drinking, He had surgery on his foot three days prior
to November 54, 20008. He testified he was taking Lortab. Id at p. 201.

That night, Mr. Hathcox heard a bang on the rail. Hathcox was not so under the
inHuence of Lortah thar he could not telling what was going on around him, 14 at p. 202.
Upon heaning the noise, he opened the door and saw (O'Keefe entering his aparment, Mr.
Hatchcox testified that Brizn had a mean look on his tace, He closed the door and went
back inside and heard little noises through the wall. I at p. 203, Mr, Hathcox testifies that
he wondered if O'Keefe was beating up his girlfriend. The noise continued for 45 minutes.
He heard Mt. Toliver coming up. I4 ar p. 204.

Police showed up and Mr. Hathcox eventually gave a statement, providing the same
information as in his tesimony here. There was 30 minutes between seeing (FKeefe and
hearing Coockie come upsrairs. Id ar p. 206, The bang on the rail that Mr. Hatheox heard was

loud enough for him w go and open the door. 14 at p. 207. Mr. Hatheox did not see any
24
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thumping noises. I4 at (. 208.

The only time he saw (FKeefe’s door open was when he came out after Cookie had
come up. Mr, Hathcox restittes that he thought OKeefe was intoxicated. He remembers the
police siting (F’Keefe on the porch after hringing him out. Jd ac p. 202, Mr. |lathcox
tesdfies that he saw O'Keefe handcuffed on the porch and agreed he was gerdng precty loud
with the police. lle states he did not know O'Keefe was passed out in the car, Id, at p, 210,
Officer Todd Conn’s Testimony:

Todd Conn is employed with LVIMMPD, currendy assigned o the maffic bureau with
accident invesdgation, Officer Conn was assigned to the Bolden area command in
November of 2008, Id at p. 212.

Parol divisions are set up by arga command, Area command is 2 specific area are
assigned to conduct patrol activities. Area command 15 is Bolden's east border, with Jones
in the west border, Carre as the north, and Desert Inn as the south bordet, OQfficer Conn is
a first responder and familiar with the CIT program, which deals with subjects suffering in
mental erisis, sometimes drug-induced states. Id at p. 213.

Officer Conn was a CIT officer in 2008, having gone through a 40 hour class,
speaking with people who were bipolar and schizophrenic, 1o get an idea of their concemns
with dealing with police officers and recognize symproms. Officer Conn responded to 3001

El Parque on November 3, 2008, /4 at p, 214,
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The call had a female body down inside with Blood everywhere. Otficer Conn
testified that he sent a texr message via computer to dispatch, advising them he was en route
code (activating lighrs and sirens) to the locadon. I ar p. 215,

Two patrol vehicles arrived before Officer Conn. Conn immediately went upstairs
and saw the apartment door open. |{e recognized State’s Hxhibit 2 as the stairway and the
door open in the picture. Walking in, there was a living room, a kirchen on the right, an open
doorway ahead, a bathroom, and another open door on the tight, with another bedroom on
the left. /& at p. 216.

Otficer Conn looked at proposed Siare’s Exhubits 3 through 6. He westified they fairly
depict the inside of unit 353 1o which he responded. The exhibit were admired. State’s
Exhibir 2 was recognized as the view locking through the doorway. fd at p. 217. State’s
Exhibit 4 was just inside the docrway, looking off to the tighe. Zooming in, vou can see the
bedroom where the tragedy ook place.

Upon locking inside the aparmment, he testified that he saw two officers in the
kitchen, namely, Officers Sanrarosa and Fonbuena. fd ar p. 218. The officer’s guns were
drawr, and they were looking directly towards the door of the southwest bedroom. 1d at p.
219,

Otficer Conn restified he ran 0 the wall, gun drawn, 50 he could cover the portion
they could not see, He testified that he saw blood and let Officer Fonbuena know he was
going to give verbal commands, I ar p, 220, Officer Conn rold whoever was in the room to
come out, hut there was no response. There was a mumbled miking noise that came from

the room, and sometmes agitated velling, Id. ar p. 221,
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The first response Officer Conn got was she sabbed herself, Due w© the amount of
bleod, he testifies that he felr the subject wanted to bair them into coming into the room
because the voice was agitated. Id ar p. 222, There was no pleading for them to come in and
save her, Officer Conn continued his verbal commands. The subject had then began saying,
“She’s dead.” Id at p. 223.

Officer Conn testified that the subject had said the woman's name was Veronica, FHe
continued with verbal commands, then O'Keefe was saying, “She's alive)" Sergeant
Newherry and his officers had then come intw the rocom. Jd at p. 224

Officer Conn handed his taser off to Officer Balleios. Jd at p. 225, Officer Conn
thought it was important somebody utilized a taser, as opposed to everyone going in with
guns. Sergeant Newberry had stared that he was going 1o do 2 quick peek. Officer Conn's
view only sliowed a bloody bed and a bit of a wall. [d at p. 226,

Sergeant Newberry saw (PKeefe laying on the female and 3 knife on the bed. All the
officers stacked up behind Officer Conn, their hands on shoulders. O'Keefe's ripht hand
was cradling her head, with the left on her torso, and she was naked from the waist down, fd
at p. 227.

Otficer Conn identfies O'Keefe in the courrroom. He testified they were laying
paraliel together. O'Keefe was ignoring all verbal commands, 74 at p. 228, O'Keefe was
screaming at them not to look at her, Officer Conn testifies that they entered the room very
fast, not running, bur in a contolled manner. There were four total officers in che back

hedroom, with tac[dcal] vests on. Jd arp. 229,
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Otficer Conn testifies that O'Keefe was becoming highly agitared. Officer Ballejos
tired the taser, striking O'Keefe, Officer Conn went to grab hands-on. Id at p. 230, Officer
Conn gave gloves to Officer Thomas, so he could put handeuffs on O'Keefe. (3’'Keefe had
begun to struggle, so both Officer Conn and Thomas grabbed under his armpits and took
him into the living room. fd. at p. 231. Medical personnel were then immediately brought
into the roam. Officer Conn does not believe he ever stepped on the woman’s body. Jd at p.
232,

On cross-examination, Officer Conn tesdfied that (YKeefe never wld them to “ger
the F our”, and they did nor reslize he was extremely intoxicated, ¥4 at p. 233, The 9-11
LVPD Communication Center states, “23:06, this person advised subject who lives in
apartment is Bran. Extremely 408" The call was code red, so there is no further
communications over that radio. The stand-off was mere minutes. Id ac p. 234,

Officer Conn cannort state what O'Keefe’s mindser was at that tme, but he &l
O'Keefe could have possibly been baidng them. I at p. 235. When the officers came in,
O eefe was not waiting for thern. fd ag p, 236, Officer Conn was only focusing on (YKeefe
duting that time, He agrees it is a small space from the end of the bed to the closet. Officer
Conn states he can only atwest to what he did. J4 arp. 237,

Officer Conn testifies he was stacked in first position, with the other officers directly
behind him, Jd at . 239. They were not directly on the wall, and he was in the corner. They
were stacked at an angle. Officer Conn did not see a weapon in O’Keefe’s hand.

Mr, Lalli stepped up for redircer examinanon, fd. at p, 240, Officer Conn restified he

cleatly gave the defendant directions o come out, bur he did not respond, ’Keete had
28
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ordered them o come in. O'Keefe was not consistent with what he was telling the officers,
saying first that she was dead, then that she was alive. Id. ar p. 241.
Dan Newberry’s Testimony:

Officer Newberry s employed with LVMPD as a sergeant in the K-9 secdon,
utilizing K-% dogs to search for suspects. 11¢ has been doing this for about 2 years, working
with Metro for a toml of 17 years, 14 at p. 242, On the night of the tragedy, Cfficer
Newberry was a sergeant with the problem solving unit They were working in plain-clothes
and an unmarked car ar 11:00 that night, Officer Newberry was the supervisor of a squad of
ofticers. Id. at p. 243.

The squad was conducting robbery suppression, which Officer Newberry explained is
looking for where robbeties or crimes are occurring, Thar night, a call came over the radio to
which Officer Newberry felt he and his officers needed to respond. The call described a
female bleeding heavily with a male in her room. They responded to the area. 14, at p. 244,

Officer Newbetry stated that domestic disturbances are routine and can often be
quite serious. He testfied he was working with Officer Sean Taylor and Officer Jeremiah
Ballcjos that evening. They made their way to unit 35, of which he agrees thar State’s Exhibit
1 depicts 4 diagram of that. Jd at p. 245.

Upon enterng, he testified that Officer Conn was giving orders, trying to negotiate,
Several uniformed officers were in the kirchen and living room area. Officer Newberry stood
next to Officer Conn, Jd4, at p. 246. Officer Newberry testified that the conversation he
heard was fruitless, with O'Keefe consistendy refusing to come out. Otficer Newberry

testified that he did a quick peck and, upon looking in, saw the female victim and O'Keefe
29
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laying on her left side, There was light in the room. Id. at p. 247. Officer Newberry saw large
amounts of blood and a knife handle on the bed. He tormed an entry team and told Officer
Coon to do a kechal cover as they entered, asking Officer Ballejos 1o be a less than lethal
cover. /4, at p. 248, Officer Newberry asked Officer Taylot to roll in with him as part of the
arrest team, They rolled in, their verbal commands were ignored, so they deployed a taser an
O'Keefe. Id, at p. 249,

The female victim was nude from the waist down and in a black tank-top. Something
was ted around ber arm. He remembers (PKeefe saving not to look at her, his hands
moving all around her. fd at p. 250. After enteting the room, Officer Newberry cleared the
bathroom and came back cut after O'Keefe was already msed. A second cycle was deployed
and evenmally they were able to get (’Keefe In handcuffs, I4. at p. 251,

He testified he immediarely administered aid afier O'Keefe was wken out of the
bedroom, He checked her pulse, used a flashlight for pupil diladon and looked for
respirations on her. Officer Newberry stated she appeared deceased. He recognized State’s
Exhibit 23 as the female victim. 14 at p, 253,

Officer Newberry testified he felt no pulse on the female victim, He is trained as an
EMT Intermediate. One paramedic had entered the room, and he also checked for a carotid
pulse on her neck, fd at p. 254, Officer Newberry picked up a taser probe and moved it to s
table in the living room. It is shown in State’s Exhibit 1 and accurately depicted in proposed
State’s Exhibit 9. Id at p. 2535, Officer Newberry renumed back outside to speak with
O’Keefe. He wanted to make sure that medical was tending to (’Keete for the taser usage.

Id. at p. 256. It is department policy to have 2 medical check on someone who had & taser
30
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used on them. O'Keete had blood on him, so they also wanted 1o check him for injurics.
Officer Newberry noticed 2 small injury on his forehead, an abrasion. (Officer Newberry was
present when medical aid was rendered to O'Keefe on the walkoway. fd. at p. 257,

O’Keefe was belligerent and uncooperatve for the paramedics trying to help him.
Mr. O’KKeefe stepped up for cross-examinadon. Officer Newberry testfied thar (Y'Keefe
appeared intoxicated. Id ac p, 258, Officer Newberry explained that a 408, which {s what the
communication center had announced, means the person is exeremely intoxicated. fd at p.
239,

Otficer Newberry tesdfied that all four officers entered the room right behind each
other, /4 at p. 263. Nobody atrempied o draw blood or give O'Keefe a breath test. He
stated that use of force reports are completed when there is an injury or suspected injury. Jd.
at p. 264.

An assessmnent was made that O’Keefe was mentally ill/under the influence, also
appearing extremely intoxicated and erratic/emotional in his behavior. Officer Newherry
testfied he never saw a weapon in (F’Keefe’s hand. Jd at p. 266. The bathroom light
attached to the bedroom was on, providing light in the room. Id at p. 267,

Ouiside Presence of fury:

The court makes sure O’'Keefe knows his rights regarding wking the stand and

testifying. Id ar p, 274275,

Rough Draft Transcript of Jury Trial — Day 3, June 13, 2012:

Daniel Ford’s Testi
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Mr. Ford is redred from the LVMPD Criminalistics Bureaw where he worked for 20
years. He was assigned to an incident involving O'Keefe on November 5%, 2008, Jury Trial
Transeript Vol. 3 (“JJT3") at p. 2. Mr. Ford’s responsibilitics were to take photographs of
the suspect and collect his clothing. Some duties of his position as 2 Crime Scene Analiyst
(“CSA™ include responding to crime scenes when requested, documenting the scenc,
searching for ttems of evidence, identfy them, collecdng, processing the scene for latent
fingerprints, completng their reports and submitting evidence collected ar the scenes. Id ar
p- 3.

Mr. Ford testified he was called w the scene at around 3:44 in the morming. Upon
arriving, he made contact with Marry Wildemann. His purpose was to photograph the
suspect and show his condition art the time of arrest. fd ac p. 4. Mr. Ford identified O'Keefe
in the courtroom because he actually photographed O’'Keefe in an interview toom. fd ac p,
5. Mr. Ford recognizes the proposed State’s Exhibits 60 through 64 as photographs he had
taken of O'Keefe. I4 at p. 6.

Exhibir 61 is a close-up of bruising and an abrasion on (P’Keefe'’s forehead, State’s
Exhibit 62 is a closc-up of O’Kecfe’s palmer side of the index finger. Id ar p. 7. State’s
Exhibit 64 is a closc-up of the tight hand with the index finger extended. There appears to
be a slight laceration to the thumb. Mr. Ford tesafied he asked the officers to assist him in
collecting (’Keete’s clothing, which he took back to the lab. I at p. 8

Each piece of clothing went in a separate bag. Mr. Ford also ook a buceal swab, for
DNA purposes, and swabbed the right index finger. A buccal swab is a cheek swab. I, at p.

9. The buceal swab was item 7, package 4. Mr. Fotd followed smndard procedures as far as
32
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impounding that buccal swab in this case, I4 at p, 10. The swab of the index fingers was
item 3, package 4. After collecting the swabs, Mr, Ford testified he took the clothing to the
forensic lab. He proceed to mke photographs of each piece. J£ at p. 11, Mr, Ford recognized
State’s proposed Exhibits 85 through 76 as (’Keefe’s clothing on the night of the arrest. 1d
at p. 12. Once Mr, Ford wok photopraphs of the clothing, he pur them back into the bags
and placed the evidence seal with his initials and P number, the date, and pur thém in the
gvidence hold room, Id. at p. 16.

On cross-examination, Mr. Ford testified they just wanted a picture of basically the
laceradon on the right index finger. Id at p. 17. Nothing was said to Mr, Ford about the
thumb. Mr. Ford testified that O’eefe had problems standing that motning. /d at p. 18.
Officers had to keep the defendant from falling over while Mr. Ford tock phorographs,

On re-direct examinanon, Mr, Ford estified he arrived at the homicide bureau ar 3:47
in the morming and was there for about an hour. Id at p. 19.

On re-cross-examination, Mr, Ford testified he was never ac the scene, just at the
homicide bureau. 1d at p, 20). Defense Exhibits A through E are admimed. 1d, at p, 21, After
finishing his job at the homicide bureaw, Mt. Ford wsified he went back to Criminalistics
Bureau on the south side of the ciry. /4 at p, 23,

Officesr Christopher Hutcherson’s Testimony:

Christopher Hutcherson has been employed as a police officer at LYMPD for 4 %
years. On November of 2008, he was a parrol officer, completing field training, 74, at p. 27.
Otfticer [1urcherson was at the end of his raining in November of 2008, The night of the

tragedy, he was riding solo and was dispatched at 11:00 P.M. to an incident atr 3001 Ei
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Parque. The call was a neighbor had walked past an apartment and saw 2 woman bleeding,
Id atp. 28

Upon arsiving, Officer Huscherson testifies that several officers were already there.
He was instructed 1o go o the rear of the apartment to make sure no one fled. Id ar p. 29,

Officer Hurcherson recognizes State’s Fixhibit 2 as the aparmment. He stood behind
the apartment for 10-135 minutes. 1 le was evenmaily made aware the suspect was in custody.
He 1estified that he was instoucted to put up enme scene tape and ke control of the suspect
in custody. fal at p. 30,

Ofticer Butcherson identified O’Keefe in the courtroom. He tesufied that the crime
SCENE [Ape Was put in front of the unit. 14, ar p. 31. All entrances were cordoned off so no
one could come out of the aparument into the ¢nme scene. 4 ar p. 32,

Officer Hutcherson testfied that (O'Keefe was beiligereat and velling obscenities
while in handcuffs. He took the defendant to his patrol car, Id at p. 33, Officer Hutcherson
conducted what they call search incident to arrest before placing (O’Keefe in the patrol car.
O'Keefe was uncooperative. Id at p. 34

He tesdfies that he had to physically nudge O’Keefe into the back of the patrol car.
Officer Hutcherson eventually decided to get out of the patrol car because he did not want
to hear (FKeefe’s loud profanides. Id at p. 35. O'Keefe proceeded w yell profanides for 5-8
minutes, evenmually falling asleep. Upon waking up, Officer Hutcherson tesiified the
defendant was mumbling to himself, no longer being loud. Id at p. 36. Officer Hutcherson
took notes of some of what the defendant was mumbting, stuff like, “T love you, V." 1d. at p,

37. O’Keefe mumbled to himself, “T swear to God, V, | didn"t mean o hurt vou. What did 1
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do wrong? Let’s go do the ten years, That's why I love vou, V, because you’re so crazy.” The
mumbling went on for 2 couple minutes. fd at p. 38.

Officer Huccherson took O'Keefe to the detectives and was present when
photographs were taken of him.  [le testified that (O'Keefe was loud and belligerent while
the photographs were taken, hut not uncooperadve. Ofticer Hutcherson spent 45 minutes
with the defendant thar evening, Id at p. 40,

After the photographs, Officer Hurcherson took O'Keefe back to the patrol car and
transported him to the Detecuve Buresu for an interview. I at p. 41, O'Keefe remained
loud and belligerent the entire way to the Bureau. The car ride was 6 minures. It took some
prodding to get him inside, J& at p. 42, Officer Hutcherson stood in the hallway as
detectives interviewed O'Keefe. He then transportied O'Keefe to the Clatk County
Detention Center around 4:3{-5:00 o’dock in the moming, He testified O'Keefe was normal
unt] realizing he was going to jail. Id at p. 43, Officer Hutcherson testified thar the
defendant appeared intoxicated.

On cross-examination Officer Hutcherson did nor recall ofticers calling in that
O'Keefe was extremcly “408." He realized (’Keefc was extremely intoxicated upon coming
in conmact with him. Id at p, 45.

Officer Hurcherson agreed that O'Keefe was intoxicated and it was clear atr 11:13 that
the police had him apprehended. On the way to jail, he testified that (FKeefe was asking
why he was going tw jail, f4, at p. 54. Officer Hurcherson restitied he knew nothing of
Victona’s mental illness or that she had 5 vears lett to live, Jd. at p. 53.

b £
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Mr. Dahn is a Crime Scene Analyst (“CSA”) with [LVMPD. He has been employed
with Metro for 14 years. He responds to crime scenes and autopsies, Id at p, 57

Mr, Dahn's job is to collect evidence and take photographs. He responded o an
autopsy on November 7%, 2008. The doctor assigned was Dr. Jacqueline Benjamin. Id. at p.
58. Mr. Dahn tesdfied regarding the photographs of the victim and the auwopsy Jd at pp.
G0-61.

(¥Keete did not cross-examine rhis witness,
Dr. Timothy Dutra’s Testi

Dir. Dutra has been a medical examiner for Clark County officer of the coroner and
medical examiner for over two {2) vears. He is a licensed physician in the State of Nevada.
He has been a medical doctor since 1974, 14, at p. 70, Dr. Dutra is tasked with deteemining
cause and manner of death. Id a1 p. 73.

Dr, Dutra was not emploved with Clark County Coroner’s Officer on November 7,
2008, but is familiar with Dr. Jacqueline Benjamin, a board-certified pathologist. 14, at p. 79.

Dr, Benjarmnin now practices as & neuropathologist in Southern California. It is normal
for a pathologist who has died or is no longer living in the starc to assign a different
pathologist to review the case file and testify In front of jurdes. He has done so for Dr.
Benjamin’s ¢ases rwice. Id, at p. 80, Dr. Dutra has reviewed all the marerials associated with
the autopsy performed on Victoria Whitmarsh, Case No. 08-8747. As such, he can render

an opinion with respect to the cause and manner of death. f4. at p, 81.
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Dr. Dutra tesafied the autopsy was performed November 7%, 2008, Dr Dutra
testified that Ms. Whitmarsh suffered from of blunt force trauma on the outside of the body
by an un-sharp object. Id arp. 82

Dr. Dutra testified regarding the injuries found on the victim. Id at p. 89-100. Dr.
Dutra’s testified that Victoria Whirmarsh died of a stab wound 1o the chest. His opined that
the manner of death was homicide, Id at p. 107. Dr. Dutra ruled out suicide or accident.
1d arp. 107.

(Y'Keefe cross-examined Dr. Dutra. Id acpp. 110-123.

On redirect examination, D, Durra tesified that forensic pathologists are allowed to
review everything they get, come to a conclusion and make 2 determination of the manner of
death, Id at p. 125. Dz, Benjamin’s opinion on her cause of death was 2 stab wound of the
chest. She also listed “cutaneous blunt tzuma”. Dr. Benjamin's manner of death was
reported as homiade, Id at p. 126,

On re-cross-examinadon, O'Keete states he wanes an opinion 45 to whether the
wound was intentional or accidental. Id at p. 130. (Y’Keefe begins making argument to the
witness, but the court stops him after Mr. Lalli objeets, telling O’Keefe to save his argument
for juty. Id arp, 131-132,

Juror No. 1 submitted a question 1o Dr. Dutra. The questions read, “[i]s there any
way she could have reached the wound site herself? Could she have smbbed herself at this
angle, while having the knife in her hand, accidentally?™ Dr, Dutra testified that he thinks it

would be very difficult. /4 at p. 134. Dr. Dutra noted that the wound is a simple in-and-out
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wound. Dr Duoa staces ir is improbabie thar she smbbed herself accidentally, Dr, Dutra
answered a couple mare juror questions. Td at pp, 135-140.
Ouiside Presence of Jury:

Mr, Lalli stated they will be calling Jocelyn Maldonade, C8A, Edward Guenther, the
latent print examiner, and |ennifer Bas, the DNA analyst. Id ar p. 142, (PKeefe states that
Dt. Benjamin did an examinadon closer here and it has been years, so he made an objecdon.
Mr, Lalii indicated that he was careful to only elicit Dr, Dutra’s proper opinions. Jd, at p. 143,
Mr. Lalli states that ()'Keefe violated the confrontaton clause and cannot raise that claim on
appeal. Thev were supposed to only ger into the opinion of Dr. Dutra, but the defendant
insisted on cbuining opinions of Dr. Benjamin. The coutt warned him, saving he would
open the door to redirect examination regarding Dr. Benjamin. 14 at p. 144, O'Keefe only
went into that area for the record after he was denied his objection. Id at p. 145.

acel 2 imo

Ms. Maldonado restitied thar she 15 a CSA with the LVMPD and was working in that
capacity back on November 6%, 2008. She responded to 5001 Pargue Ave., unit #35. She
was called to document and process the crime scene.  Ms. Maldonado tesdfies that two
CSAs usually respond to the scene and the supervisor assigns responsibilities. Gary Reed was
the crime scene supervisor there. She was teamed up with Chelsea Collins. 14 ar p. 149, Ms.
Collins ook photographs of the scene. Ms. Maldonado collected and impounded evidence,
constructed 4 sketch of the scene, and also, the computer-generated diagram. Id at pp. 156-

151.
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Ms, Maldonado explained how she collected and processed evidence from the crime
scene while referring to pictures. fd atr pp. 156-178.

On cross-examinarion, Ms. Maldonado restitied she did not take the photographs. Id
at p. 179. She was present when the photographs were raken. Jd ar p. 180. O’Keefe shows
Ms. Maldonado a document she dees not recognize ar all. fd. ar p. 181, It is a receipr from
(Feete’s wallet. O'Keefe argues that it was evidence that should have been photographed,
but it was not, I at p. 182, Ms, Maldonado testifies she does not know if anyone Hipped the
light switch with blood 1o test it Jd at p. 185, She reiterates that she only documents and
recovers evidence, any further analysis would be at the direction of a detective. Id at p. 186,

Ms, Bas works for the LYMPD in the biclogy DNA detail, specializing in DRNA
testing, She has been with Metro for 5 years. [d atp. 188,

Ms, Bas testified how TINA evidence is collected and used. Id at pp. 189-192. She
discussed the evidence collected in this matter and how it could be used in a case. 14 at p.
193-215. O'Keefe did not cross-examine the wirness.

Rough Draft Transeript of Jury Trial — Day 4, dated June 14, 2012:
Juty Trial Transcrpt Vol. 4 ("JTT4™)
Quiside Presence of Jury
The Defendant argued that he did not stipulate to Staie’s Exhibit 14, the mental health

records of the victim. He argued that the his astorney during the second trial stipulated o their

admission. Previously, Judge Villani ruled he would read the stpuladon into the record. M.

Lalli was willing to agree to Judge Bonaventure reading Exhibit 14 to the jury. 1d atpp. 2-8.
39
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The parties discuss some 911 calls and their admassibility. [fd. at pp. 9-17. The Court

reuled that neither call will be played do to foundational issues. 1d. at p. 18.
Ed Guenther's Testimony:

Mtr. Guenther is emploved with LVMPD, His assignment in the Crominalistics
Burean and the forensic lab. His ares of experdse is laenr fingerprings.  Mr. Guenther
expaine the process of collection and analyzing fingerprints. 14 at pp. 26-27.

Mr. Guenther testified that he reviewed the subject knife for fingerprints. J4 at pp. 28-
32. On cross-examination, Mr, Guenther testified he examined the kaife thoroughly. Id ac
p. 35. He could find no clear fingerprints belonging to the defendant. I at p. 56.

Officer ) iah Balleios’ Tessi .

Office Ballejos was employed ar the LVMPD rohbery/homicide hureau and is
currently a detective with Metro, Jd at p. 38, On Nowvember 5h, 2008, he was working with
Otficer Sean Taylor and Sergeant Dan Newberry, They were finishing up some follow-up
investigation and heading back to the station when they heard a 911 call. They were wearing
plain clothes, along with a badge. [ at p. 39, Ofiicer Ballejos’ westified the three of them
responded. 74 at p. 40.

Upon arrival, patrol vehicles and medical had already arrived. Medical was in the
courtyard. Once arriving upstairs, Officer Ballejos came in contace with Officer Todd Conn,
who was communicating with a male individual in a back bedroom, Id at p. 420 Officer
Ballejos and the two other officers went into the living room at the same dme. He testfied

that Officer Conn was standing at the very end of the wall, giving commands. Id, at p, 43,
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Otticer Ballejos restitied regarding entry and contact with the defendant. Id. at p. 44-
51. He tesdfied regarding deploving a taser on the defendant, Id, at p, 52, Officer Ballepos

restimony mainly supports previous law enforcement testimony. Id. at pp. 553-66.

Detective Martin Wildemann testified. Id. at pp. 68-124.
Medical records read out foud:

Mr. Lalli requests the stipulation regarding cerrain facts be read to the jury. 14 at p.
125. Victoria Whitmarsh's medical record facm are read aloud. She has made muldple suicide
attempts, curdng her wrists, stabbing her hands, and overdosing on pills and morphine. She
was admitred to Montevista Hospital October 2001, Septemnber 2006, August 2006 and
October 2006. She admitted to being depressed and getting into fights with her husband,
which caused her to feel suicidal. I ar p. 127-129.
Onnsi 3

(YKeete objected stating he feels he is being violawed, per Mirunda n _Arzona,
Detective Wildemann did not refresh his Mmosds npghts even when he was extremely
intoxicated and incoherent. Jd ar p. Y2, There was a point durdng the inrerview where
Detective Wildemann left and (Y’Keefe passed out. Mr, Lalli states the video was heavily
edited, but O'Keefe was very aware of what was going on throughout the interview. Id. at p.
93. The moton to suppress was denied by Judge Villani, The court allowed the tape to be
played.

O’Keete arpued thar Mr. Lalli violated the ABA Model Rules of Ethics, 72 at p. 94,

Mr. Lalli allowed his witness to estfy—knowing it was his whole argument, clearly—zhar
41
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Ms. Whitmarsh testified for O’Keefe in the felony domestic violence case, not against. The
Srate allowed their witness to give perjured testimony in violadon of the mles of ethics. Id at
p- 95. Mr. Lalli states that Ms, Whitmarsh testfied regarding the battery O'Keefe committed
against her, As such, (FKeefe was convicted by a jury. Jd at p. 96. The count denied
(YKeefe's motion, Id, at p. 97.

O’Keefe argued that he properly and dmely objected to the 911 mpes now heing
admicted, stating the State opened the door. The State responded that they did not prohibit
O'Keefe trom admitting any 911 mpes; however, there is no foundadon, so they are sdll not
adnussible. I4, at p. 132.

O'Keefe cited Nevada 1. Colmes, under NRS 175.381(1) stating that the “Jiif at any
time after the evidence of either side is closed, the Court deems the evidence insufficient to
warrant 4 conviction, it may advise the jury to 2equit the defendant, hut the jury is not bound
by such evidence.” ld (FVKeefe arpued the evidence in this case was identical and less than
evidence preseated in the first trial, and thar the evidence did not support that theory of 2
degree murder. Jd

Mr, Lalli argued that the smawe is proceeding on simple implied malice murder.
G’keete argued he was acquitied of the battery act and through a litde trickery, duplicity was
being used, 4 at p. 135, In other words, (Keefe argued that all the evidence was already
in the record of appeal on the first tral, and there has been oo new evidence. O'Keefe
believed some evidence was wrongfully used, o which he objected. O'Keefe argued that the
evidence does not supporr murder and that he does not think it should be umed over to

jury for deliberadon. Id at p. 136.
42
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Mr. Lalli opposed the motion. The State is sall free to proceed on 22 degree murder
based upon an unlawful killing with malice, aforethought. Mr, Lalli argued that the State has
proven guilt beyond a reascnable doubt Id ar p. 138. The coure indicared that it fele
compelled to leave this to jury. ld atp. 139
Jury I . ot £ ity

The parties and court reviewed the submined inscructions. “1d. ar pp. 140-188.

Both parties stipulate they settled these instructions in court and will be given o the
juty prior 1o the argument. [d. at p. 169,

Rough Draft Tranacript of Juty Trial = Day 5, dated June 15, 2012:

The jury instructons wete read. Jury Tdal Transerpt Vol 5 (*JTTS™ at p. 2.
Closing arguments were given, [TT5:3-51. The jury found Keefe guilty of murder in the
second degree with use of a deadly weapon. Jd at 35-56.

ARGUMENT

I. APPELLATE COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO
PROVIDE THE APPELLATE COURT WITH THE CHALIENGED
JURY INSTRUCTION RESULTING IN THE APPELLATE COURT'S
INABILITY TO REACH THE MERITS OF THE DISTRICT COURT'S
REJECTION OF A JURY INSTRUCTION DEFINING AN ELEMENT

OF THE CRIME.
Under Stnokiand ». Washingtos it sets the precedent for challenges to the ineffectve
assistance of counsel as has been adopred in the State of Nevada as the standard. fé7d, 466
L5, 668, 680-87, 104 5.Ct. 2052, 2063-64 (1984). Swickiand provides a two-prong test which

includes (1} whether counsel’s representadon fell below an objecive standard of

reasonableness, and (2) whether defendant was prejudiced ro the extent that, but for
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counsel’s errors, there was a reasonable probability of a different putcome, Id, The NSC has
indicated thac the assismnce needs to fall within the “range of competence demanded of
attomey’s in criminal cases." Jacksom v Wardew, Nevada State Prisan, 91 Nev. 430, 432, 537
P.2d 473, 474 (1975), guoting McMann v Richardeon, 397 U.S. 759, 771, 90 5.Cu. 1441, 1449
(19700, In Edfis o Skate 10 states as tollows:

To state a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel...a petiioner must
demonstrate that his counsel’s performance was deficlent in that it fell below
an objective standard of reasonableness, and resulring prejudice such thar
there 15 a reasonable probability of a different cutcome in the proceedings.
Strickiand v, Washingion, 466 U.S. 668, 68788, 104 5.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674
(1984); Warden v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 43233, 683 P.2d 304, 505 (1984},

1kd, 281 P. 3d 1170. Furthermare, in Themar » Sizte the ineffecoveness of counsel an

appeal states as follows:

For a defendant ro asscrt a claim that appellate counsel was ineffective, he
“must show that an omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of
success on appeal.” Id While counsel is not required 1o assert every issue on
appeal, counsel is required to act in 4 manner that does not prejudice the
detendant, or destroy a viable elaimn.

1bdd, 83 P.3d 818, 823 (Nevada 2004), See SCR 153, Meaddieton v, Warden, Nevada Siave Priton,
120 Nev, 664, 98 P.3d 694 {2004); Means v. Siate, 120 Nev. 1001, 103 P.3d 25 (2004); ¥ armer
e, Ssate, 102 Nev, 635, 729 P.2d 1339 (1987 Keorr 2. Siare, 103 Nev. 604, 748 P.2d 1 (1987,

Appeliant bas the ultimate responsibility to provide this court with “pordons
of the record essential to determinaton of Issues raised in appellant's appeal.”

Thomas v Staie, 120 Nev. 37, 43, & n. 4, 83 P.3d 818 (2004) guosing NRAP 30(b)(3); ser afro

Grreene v. Siate, 96 New, 355, 358, 612 P.2d 686, 688 (1980) (“The burden t make a proper
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appellate record rests on appellant.™); facobs o State, 91 Nev. 15335, 158, 532 P.2d 1034, 1036
(1975).

“Murder” is defined as “the unlawful killing of 2 huoman beingg With malice
aforethought, either express or implied ...” NRS § 200.010. Express and implied malice are
defined as follows:

1. Express malice is that deliberate intenuion unlawfully to take away the life of
a tellow creature, which is manifested by external circumstances capable of
proof.

2. Malice shall be implicd when no considerable provocanon appears, or when

all the circumsmnces of the killing show an abandoned and malignant
heart.

NRS § 200,020 {emphasis added). The NSC has upheld the use of the language provided in
NRS 200,02002) in jury instructions.

The instructon uses the language provided in WRS 200.026(2), and this court
has upheld use of the instruction where the jury is propedy wstructed on the
presumption of innocence and the State's burden to prove beyond a
reasonable doubt every element of the crime charged. Ser Doyl o Stare, 112
Nev. 879, 900102, 921 P.2d 601, 915-16 (1996),

Cordova o. State, 116 Nev. 664, 666, & P.3d 481, 483 20000, All clermens of the crime must be
submitted to the jury in the jury instructions. Failure o do so results in constimutional error,
When a jury instruction omits & necessary element of the crime, constitutional
error has occurred. ... The court's erroneous insouction on the elements of
murder in the second degree was also consttutional error. Seadiromw 2
Montana, 442 1.5, 510, 523-24, 99 S.Cr. 2450, 61 L.Ed.2d 3% (1979 (holding
that a jury instruction that relieved the State of its burden to prove the element
of intent was unconsttutional).
Ho p. Carey, 332 F.3d 587,592 (9th Cir. 2003) referencing Wade v Calderon, 29 F.3d 1312,
1321 (9th Cir.1994). Every element of the offense charged should be in the jury instructions.

Failure to do so results in violaton of defendant’s Due Process rights.
45
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The prosecution has the burden of proving every element of a ctime beyond a
reasonable doubr Carslla 1 Calfformia, 491 US. 263, 265, 109 5.Ct 2419, 2420,
105 L.Ed.2d 218 (1989) (cidng In = Winship, 397 U.S, 338, 364, 90 8.Cc. 1068,
1073, 25 L.Ed.2d 368 (1970). Accordingly, when a mial judge omits an
element of the offense charged from the jury instructions, it deprives the jury
of its fact-finding duty and viclates the defendant's due process rights. Jd

United Stater v Mendoza, 11 F.3d 126, 128 (9th Cir. 1993); tee adro Brookehy, 668 F.2d 1102 “lt
is well-established that a district court errs if it kails ro instruct the jury on an element of a
charged offense.” Ulsited States v MeCaleh, 532 F.3d 1053, 1058 (9th Cir, 2009); see United
Stater . Alghagouls, 517 F.3d 1179, 1189 (9th Cir.2008), cert demied, - US. -—, 129 8.Cr. 237,
172 1.Ed.2d 180 (2008).

The failure to instruct on an essential element of 2n offense is “fundamenm]

error,” United Stater v. King, 521 F.2d 61, 63 (1(th Cir, 1975), which cannort be

cured by reference to the indictment or by reading the unexplained language

of the statute to the jury. ... Therefore, notwithstanding that the indictment,

the stature and an instructon on “willfully” were read 1o the jury, the failure o

instruct them thar “willfuiness™ was an essential element of the crime

prejudiced the defendant. The steps already mendoned that were taken by the
district court did not cure the error.
United States v. Brooksby, 668 F.2d 1102, 1105 (9th Cir. 1982) guasing United States v, Pope, 561
F.2d 663 (6th Cir. 1977). Even if the courr adequately instructs on most of the elements of
the crimge, it must instruce on the essendal elements of the caime.

At the end of the third trial O'Keefe requested that his propuosed jury instructon
further defining “abandoned and malignant heart” be given. An “abandoned and malignant
heart”™ may constiture implied malice, which s an element of murder with use of a deadly
weapon. NRS § 200,020¢2), The court denied his request On direct appeal appellate
counsel broadly argued that the disoicr court erred in rejecting (’Keete’s instructions, one

of which was regarding defining an “abandoned and malignant heart™ Other rejectad
46
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instructons permain tw O'Keele's requests regarding non-tlight (p. 27), intoxicatdon {p. 28),
and detining reasonable doubt (p. 29). Each of these were marked as “proposed” and
rejected by the tmal court, Although appellate counsel made 2 broad challenge o the rejected
jury insttuctions on appeal, he failled to provide a copy of the jury instructons to the
appellate court in the appeal appendix. Thus, the Nevada Supreme Courr faulted appellate
counsel as follows:

{¥Keete has not provided this court with the instructions given at trial, he

fails 0 demonstrate thar the district court gbused its discretion by rejecting his

proposed instruction. ... also Greene p. Siate, 96 Nev, 555, 3538, 612 P 2d

686, 688 (1980) (“The burden to make a proper appellate record rests on

appellane™). O’Keefe also does not idennfy which instruetons he contends

were erronecusly given, We conclude that he fails to demonstrate that the

district court abused its discreton.
O Keefe v. State, WL 1501038 (2013),

The failure 1o submir the Insgructions in the appendix by ’Keefe’s appellate counsel
meets the requirements of Strickland v Washington, Ihid., 466 U5, at 686-87, 104 5.Ct. at
2063-64. Counsel’s representavon fell below an objective standard of reasonableness in
omirdng a necessary document from the appellate recond, which resulted in the NSC’s
inability to render 4 merdtorous decision thereon, 14 This exclusion is not within the rangc
of competence demanded of appellate amomeys in criminal cases, since it s common
knowledge that any appellaw: challenge to a specific pleading or document presented in trial
below will not be supported absent that documens or pleading, Ser, Jackion, 91 Nev. at 432,
537 P.2d at 474, quoting McMann, 397 LS. ar 771, 90 S.Cu ar 1449. O'Keefe, through his
appolnted counsel, maintained the ultimate responsibility to provide the NSC with “portions

of the record essential to determination of issues raised in appellant's appeal.” Thomras, 120
47
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MNev, at 43, & n, 4, gassing NRAP 30(b)(3); see alp Grvene, 96 Nev, at 538; facobs, 91 Nev, at
138. There can be no “objecdve reasonableness” found in such an omission. Id, see alse Effis,
281 P, 3d 1170, Further, this is not a situaton where there was an omirted issue on appeal,
rather the issue was actually arpued by appellate counsel withour the proper record support
submitted to enable such review, thereby destroving a viable claim. Thomar 83 P3d ar 823;
see SCR 153, Midditen, 120 Nev. 664; Meanr, 120 Nev, 1001; Wamer, 102 Nev, 635; Krorr, 103
Nev. 64, The challenge o the instruction on appeal had a reasonable probability of
success, hence the omired instrucdon in the appendix submined by appellate counsel caused
prejudice. Thowas O'Keefe was significantly prejudiced o the extent thag, bur tor counsel’s
grror In preparing and submitting the appendix to the NSC, there was a reasonable
probability of a diffetent outcome on the appeal. S#ickland, 406 1.5, at 686-87, 104 S.Ct. ar
2063-64.

The instruction argued on appeal pertained to elements of the crime for which O'Keefe
was convicted. The codified definition of “murder” comains the phrase “[w]ith malice
aforethought, either express or implied ...”. NRS § 200.010. The term “implied malice™ is
further defined to include circumstances “when no considemble provocation appears, or
when all the circumstances of the killing show an abandoned and malipnant heart”. NRS §
200.020¢2). This is precisely the instruction O'Keefe sought to define for the juty, which the
NSC has indicated as properly instructing the jury “on the presumpton of innocence and
the State’s burden to prove beyond a reasonable doubt every element of the cnme charged.”
Cordova, 116 Nev. at 666, 6 P.3d at 483; see, Doyl 112 Nev. at 900412, 921 P.2d at 915-16.

Thus, the challenged instruction dealt particulacly with not only an ¢lement of the crime, but
48
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also impacted the level of the State’s burden as submirted to the jury, necessarly causing a
constitutional Due Process error in the procsedings. He, 332 F.3d ar 592, aiting Wade, 29 F.3d
at 1321; ree adto Sandetrom, 442 U5, ac 523-24, 99 5.Cc 2450 {holding thar a jury instructon
that relieved the State of its burden o prove the element of intent was unconstitutional);
Carella, 491 US. ar 265, 109 5.Cc ar 2420 (wiing In v Wimship, 397 UK. ar 364, 90 501 at
1073); Mendosa, 11 [-.3d at 128; see 2lo Brooksby, 668 IF.2d 1102, “It i3 well-escablished that 2
district court errs if it fails ro instruct the jury on an element of a charged offense.” MaCakb,
552 [.3d at 1058; see Afghagnuti, 517 F.3d ar 1189,

The failure of the trial court to properly instruct the jury in this matter resulted in a
“fundamental error” in the proceedings. Brooksdy, 668 F.2d at 1105, gussing Pope, 561 F.2d
663, The appellate counsel’s fallure to adequately present the instrucdon to the NSC in
making such argument on appeal effectvely destroyed (’Keefe’s nght to have the matter
reviewed on its merits, O’Keefe’s anly cure and avenue for relief remaining is through these
proceedings.

Mot only did counsel fail to provide the jury insttuedons, he failed 0 adequately
argue the issue, citing only one case in support of his arpument. Thete is an abundance of
case law as set forth sapre that requires jury insouctions be given on all essental elements of
the offense charged. It deprives the jury of its fact-finding dury, the defendant’s Due Process
rights are violated and a fundamental error has occurred necessitating reversal, Ser Mendogu
and Brooksizy, supra. Counsel failed to adequately research and present this case 1o the N5C on

the level of severity it warranted, instead simply glossing over it o O'Keefe’s decriment.
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Thus, (3’Keefe has heen denied his ability 1o be heard on that issue thus preventing
him from a meaningful right to appeal. Had appeliate counsel provided the jury instructons
and pertormed the proper research necessary to this issue, he would have been able w
provide & very compelling argument that would have resulted in O’Keefe's favor, Therefore,
counsel’s failure to do so not only fell below the standard of rcascnableness, hut also
prejudiced O'Keefe 50 he was unable 1o be heard on that issue thus denying him a
meaningful right to appeal that issue.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, Brian O'Ksefe prays that the court will conduct an evidendary

heating and grant habeas corpus relief to which he may be endtled in this proceeding,
DECLARATION AND VERIFICATION

I, Matthew Carling, am an attomey licensed to practce law in the Smte of Nevada
who was duly appointed 1o represent the Petiioner, Brian (O'Keefe, in the preparaton and
filing of the above Petdon for Writ of Habeas Comus (Post-Conviction), and thar [ filed
the foregoing document at the specitic instrucdon of the Petinoner, and based on the order
of appointment by the Court.

Respectfully submitmed this 82 day of April, 2015.

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

A [, Carli
MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 007302

Court-appoinied Attorney for Peritioner/ Defendant
BRIAN O'"KEEFE
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CERTIFICATE OQF SERVICE

I bereby certify that, on this 8" day of April, 2015, I sent 2 true and correct copy of the
above SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORFPUS to the following parties:

Ryan ). MacDonald, Esa.
Deputy District Attomey
Ryan. el

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

(s Matthew D, Carling

MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.

51

9678



An unpublishid order shall not be regarded as precedent snd shall not be cited as isgal authority. SCR 123,

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

BRIAN KERRY O'KEEFE, No. 61631

Appellant,

va.

THE STATE OF NEVADA, F"-ED

Respondent. JUL 15 208

TRACIE K. LINCEWAN
,,“f. Mf

ORDER PR

Appellant has submitted a proper person motion to stay the
remittitur pending his petition for a writ of certiorari to the United States
Supreme Court. Appellant is represented by counsel in this appeal and
has not been granted leave to file documents in proper person. See NRAFP
46(b). The clerk of this court shall return, unfiled, the proper person
motion received on July 12, 2013. Hereafter, appellant shall proceed by
and through his counsel of record.

It is so ORDERED.

P:ohuw , CJ.
J

cc:  Bellon & Maningo, Ltd.

Attorney General/Carson City
Clark County District Attorney
Brian Kerry O’Keefe
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BRIAN K. O’KEEFE, Supreme Court No.: 69036
Appellant, District Court CaseYos - (RSATEHY Filed
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Dec 09 2015 10:29 a.m.
THESTATE EF NEEA?"’“ Tracie K. Lindeman
RAONCERE: Clerk of Supreme Cour

APPELLANT'S APPENDIX - VOLUME XXIX - PAGES 5576-5639

MATTHEW D, CARLING STEVEN B. WOLFSON

1100 5. Tenth Street Clark County District Attorney

Las Vegas, NV 82101 200 Lewis Avenue, 3° Floor

{(702) 419-7330 {Office) Las Vepas, Nevadsa 89155

Attorney for Appeliant Counsel for Respondent
ADAM PAUL LAXALT

Attorney General

100 North Carson Street

Carson City, Nevada 89714717
Counsel for Respondent
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AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding

NG Foee K goys etz Bl

(Title of Document)

Sen.

filed in-istrict-€onrt Case number o/ €3/

D/Dnes nat contain the social security number of any person.
-OR-
8  Contains the social security number of a person as required by:

A. A specific state or federal law, to wit:

(State specdific law)
-nr—

B. Fer the administration of a public program or for an application
for a federal or state grant.

%ﬁ@/ e 28, 202
nature N Date

Bewl § Oftere

Print Name
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Tite
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Matthew D. Carling GLERK OF THE COURT
WNevada Bar No. 007302

1100 5. Tenrh Screet

Las Vegas, NV 80101

(702) 419-7330 (Office)

{702} 446-8065 (Fax)

Conrr-appointed AAttorney for Petitioner/ Defondant

BRIAN O’KEEFE
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, Case No..  DEC250630
Plaintiff, Dept. No.: XVII

VS,

BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, EVIDENTIARY HEARING REQUESTED
Defendant,

" o e ——p—
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(POST CONVICTION)

COMES NOW Detendant Brian O'Keefe (“O’Keefe™), by and through his counsel
Marthew D. Carling and, pursnant to NRS. ANN. § 34.724, hereby submits this Supplemental
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpas (the “Supplemental Petition™), which is suppoerted by the
foliowing:

1. Name of Insttution and county in which Petitioner is presently
imprisoned or where and who Petitioner is presently retrained of his liberry:
Lovelock Cocrectional Center, Pershing County.

2. Name and location of court which entered the judgment of conviction
under attack: Eighth Judicial Districr Court, Regional Justice Center 200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89155,
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3 Dazte of Judgment of Conviction: August 28, 2012.

4, Case Number: 08C250630.

5. (a) Length of Sentence: ten (10) w twenty-fve (25) years consecutive gight
(8) to rwenty (207 years.

(b) If scntence is death, state any date upon which executon is
scheduled: MN/A

b. Is Petitioner presently serving a sentence for a conviction other than the
conviction under atrack in thie motion? If “Yes”, list the crime, case number and
sentence being served at this time: No,

7. Nature of offense involved in conviction being challenged: Second-
Degree Malice {implied) Murder W.D.\¥.

8. What waa Pedtioner’s Plea? Not guiiry.

9. If Petitioner entered a guilty plea to one count of an indictment or
information, and a not guilty plea to another count of an indictment or information,
or if a2 guilty plea was negotiated, give detaila: N/A

10.  If Peritioner wae found guilty after a plea of not guilty, the finding was
made by: Jury.

11.  Did the Petitioner testify at wial? No,

12.  Did Petitioner appeat from his judgment of conviction? Yes, from both
the: First Trial and the Third Trial, both defined pos.

13.  If Petitioner appealed, anawer the following:

(1) Name of the Court: Supreme Court of Nevada,
2
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(Z) Case number or citation: Casc Nos, 53859 and 61631

(3) Result The First Trial appeal in Case No. 53859 resulted in reversal and
remand. The Third Tral appeal in Case No, 61631 resulred in affirmance.

(4) Date of Decision: April 7, 2010 (First Trial), and April 10, 2013 (Third
Trial).

14.  If Petitioner did not appeal: explain briefly why he did not: N/A

15. Other than a direct appeal from the judpment of conmviction and
sentence, has Petitioner previously file any petitions, applications or motion with
respect to thie judgment in any court, state or federal? Yes.

16. Ifyour answer to No. 15 was “Yea”, give the following information:

{1) Name of the Court: United States Distdct Court of Nevada (Case No,
2:11-CV-02109-GMN);

(2) Nacure of Proceedings: Double jeopardy Pre-Trial §2241(C)(B) Habeas
Corpus Violaton by second trial on same offense after acquittal,

(3} Grounds raised: Double [eopardy Violation when second jury tmial
ended in mismal and State proceeded on continuing jeopardy doctrdne, holding third trial
while second tal was on appeal.

(4) Did Petitioner receive an evidentiary hearing on his petition, application
or motion? No, Resulr: N/A Date of resule: Febmary 3, 2012, If kmown, citatons of
any wiitten opinion or date of orders entered pursuant to such result: The marter is
sdll pending argument on the merits of the peddon. The Coutt has only enterrained

procedursl issues at present.
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17.  Has any ground being raised in this petition been previously presented
ta this or any other count by way of petition for habeas corpus, motion or application
or any other post-conviction proceeding? If so, identify: No, it has not.

{a) Which of the grounds are the same: N/A
(b) The proceedings in which these grounds were raised: N/A
(¢) Brefly explain why you are again raising these grounds: N/A

18.  If any of the grounds listed in Nos. 23(a) ef seq. or listed on any
additional pages you have attached, were not previcusly presented in any other
court, state or federal, list briefly what grounds were not so presented, and give your
reasons for not presenting them: N/A

19.  Is Petitioner filing this pedtion more than one (1) year following the
filing of the judgment of conviction or the filing of a decision on direct appeal? If so,
state briefly the reasons for the delay: No. Peddon dmely filed.

20.  Does Petitioner have a petition ot appeal now pending in any court,
either state of federal, as to the judgment under attack? No, United Stawes Court of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, No. 12-15271 was concluded,

21.  Give the name of each attomey who represented you in the proceeding
resulting in your conviction and on direct appeal: Randy Pike, Pamicia Pal, Jonell
Thomas, Lance Maningo, Brian O'Keefe — Pro Per; Amanda Gregory; Rvan Norwood
AFRD.

Z2.  Does Petitioner have any fumue sentences to serve after you complete

the sentence imposed by the judgment under attack? No.
4

i\
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The State charged O’'Keefe with murder with use of 2 deadly weapon by way of an
Amended Information on February 10, 2000, A jary crial was held on March 16-20, 2009, in
which O'Keefe was found guilty of second degree murder with use of a deadly Weapon.
{"Firat Trial”). On May 21, 2009, O’Keefe filed his notice of appeal from his conviction, |le
filed a Fast Track Staremnent in the Nevada Supreme Court (“NSC”) on August 19, 2009, In
his Fast Track Statement, (¥ Keete argued, among other things, that the distict court’s ruling
on juty instructions was erroneous, and that the district court improperly allowed a jury
instruction regarding felony murder as an altemnate theory of second degree murder when
felony murder had not been specifically alleged in the Amended Information. On April 7, 2010,
the NSC issued its Onder of Reversal and Remand. The NSC smted that “the district court
abused irs discredon when jt instucted the jury that second-degree murder includes
involuntary killings that occur in the commission of an unlawful act because the State’s
charging document did nor allege that O’Keefe killed the victim while he was committing an
unlawful act and the evidence presented at trial did not support this theory of second-degree
murder.”  OKeeft o Ssate, NSC Docker No. 53859 {Apseil 7, 2010)(the “First Trial
Reversal™).

On August 19, 2010, the State filed 1 second .Amended Information. On August 23,
2012, the second izl was held on remand from the NSC for the chatpe of murder with use
of a deadly weapon (the “Second Trial™). On September 2, 2010, there was 2 mistrial based

upon a deadlock of the jury, and wial was reset for a third wial (the “Third Trial™).
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On April 8, 2011, after the second trial ended in mistrial, O'Keefe filed his Pesiion Jfor
Writ of Probibition or Mandawus (the *“NSC Petition™) with the NSC, He challenged the
district court’s denial of his motion to dismiss the criminal charge on Double Jeopardy
grounds, among other things, The NSC determined Double Jeopardy posed no har to
(FKeefe’s retnal and declined o intervene.

Upon denial of his NSC Petition, O'Keefe filed 2 motion/petition in the Lnited
States Districc Court of Nevada, Case No. 2:11-CV-021009, chalienging the Double
Jeopardy pre-trial §2241(c)(3) habeas corpus violagon by second tal on same offense after
acquittal. O'Keefe v. Gillespie, 2012 WL 367048 (February 2, 2012). ‘That motion/petition was
dismissed on February 2, 2012, on grounds thar O’Keefe had failed to exhaust his state
judicial remedies. Id O'Keefc appealed that denial to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals
(the “Ninth Circuit Appeal™). OKefe 1 Gillespie, 5393 Fed.Appx. 626 (Case No. 12-15271;
Feb. 2, 2015). The Ninth Circuit found the appeal to be moot by the fact that the Third Trial
occurred in which O'Keefe was convicted in state cour rendeting €)’Keefe’s sought remedy
unavailable. However, the Ninth Circuit dismissal noted that its decision was without
prejudice to those claims being properly filed in a §2254 petition. I4 at 627.

Duning this procedusal federal appeal process, the martter proceeded before the state
court on the Third Trial after the second trial was declared 2 mistrial. On October 3, 2011,
O’Keete filed his P Sz Motion t9 Diswise Appointed Connvel and for Faretta Hearing. After a
Faretia canvas, the court granted O’Keefe’s moton, finding him competent to waive his right
o counsel, and allowed him to represear himself, with Lance A. Maningo as standby

counsel.

i
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On March 16, 2012, O’Keefe filed his Mo#on 2o Diswiss Bared Upon Vislations of the
Fifeh Amendment Companeni of the Double Jeapardy Clause, Constitutional Colluterad Erigppel and
Abternatively, Claiming Res Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upan ihe Siat's
Precinding State’s Theory of Prosecusion by Unlwful Intentional Stabbing with Kngfe, the Alleged Buatiery
Aet Deseribed in the Amended Information (the “Dismissal Motion™). O’Keefe’s Dismissal
Motion was denied, O'Keefe verbally renewed his Dismissal Motion on the first day of his
trial, and it was again denied.

On June 1, 2012, (¥Ksefe filed his Motion # Comtinue Tris), Continuance was denicd
on June 5, 2012 at calendar call. During calendar call, (PKeefe informed the trial court that
he was not ready o proceed 1o trial, and requested thar the marter be stayed because of the
Ninth Circuit Appeal that regarded violations o his constitutional rights in these
proceedings, ('Keefe argued he was not totally prepared for trial at this ime because he had
been devotng much of his dme to his federal case. Afer denying the continuance, the
Third Tal commenced June 11, 2012. On June 15, 2012, the jury returmed a verdict finding
O’Keele guilty of second degree murder with use of a deadly weapon. (F'Keefe filed a Nosia
9/ Appeal o September 5, 2012 from the convietion swemming from the Third Trial. Be filed
a deficient Fast Track Stalement in the NSC on November 1, 2012, He filed an dmended Fas
Track Statement on November 2, 2012, In his Amended Fast Track Statement, O Keefe argued,
among other things, thar the district court erred in denying (’Keefe’s request to stay the teial
based upon his pending writ in federal courr and the face that he was not ready for tral to
begin. O'Keefe also argued that the districr court erred in not allowing defense’s jury

instruction for the element of the erime - malignany heart. On Apdl 10, 2013 the NSC
7
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entered its Order of Affiomance (the “Third Trial Affirmance™) regarding these two
arguments. The NSC faulred O’Keefe and found that “the distrier court did not abuse its
discretion by denying O'Keefe’s request for an extended continuance where the delay was
his faulr.., Because O'Keefe has not provided this court with the instructons given ac trial,
he fails to demonstrate thar the district court abused ity discretion by rejecting his proposed
instruction.” OKeefe #1 State, 2013 WL 1501038, NSC Docket No, 61631 (Aprl 10, 201 3).

On August 19, 2013, O'Keefe filed a petition for writ of certiorari in the United
States Supreme Court with regard to the Third Trial Affiemance, in Case No. 13-6031, which
was denied October 15, 2013, O'Keefe » Nevada, 134 5.Ct. 444, 187 L.Ed.2d 297 (Case No.
13-6031; Ocrober 15, 2013).

On December 6, 2013 O'Keefe filed a Petition for Writ of Mandamns or, in the Alervative,
Writ of Coramr Nabis arguing the issue of his prior burglary case being used against him in this
myrder case. [t was denjed on January 28, 2014. On January 27, 2014 (PKeefe filed a Moson
to Modify and/or Correct Wiegal Sentence (Post-Convietion Remedy - NRS 176.555) raising the
issue of fack of jursdiction, It was denied on March 25, 2014, On July 23, 2014, O'Keefe
filed a Mation for Redief from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S. Court of .Appeais Had not
lssued any Remand, Mandate, or Remittur (Post-Conviction Remedy - NRCP (60)(b)(4)) and it
was denied August 14, 2014. He filed a Notice of 4ppeal on August 29, 2014 regarding the
denial; however, it was eventwally dismissed,

O'Keete filed his Pesition for Wit of Habeas Corpas on September 15, 2014, challenging
that the tnal coure lacked jursdiction to hear the Third Trial because the Ninth Circuit

Appeal remained pending. On November 6, 2014 this Court appointed the undersigned
g

nn5595



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

counsel o file a supplemental petition for wnt of habeas corpus. Brefing was sec with this
supplemental pedtion due April 7, 2015,
8 O S
Draft ipt of jal = Day 1
Outside presence of jury

Mr, Lalli (state’s counsel) states they are using the same exhibits used in the previous
wial Jury Trial Transerpt Vol 1 (“JTT1™) at p. 3. Mr, Lalli stces they will refer o pror
testmony as hearings, things of that narre, and not refer w a prior mal. They have
admonished their witnesses to not do so, as well, JTT1:4. Mr, Lalli informed the court that
Judge Villani granted in part 4 bad 2ct motion the State proffered. One incident was 2
conviction (FKeefe suffered for domestic violence, third offense. JTT1:5, It is Mr. Lalli’s
beliet that the order allowed them to indicate that (’Keefe was tried on a charge of bartery
consttuting dornestic violence, third offense. Lieutenant Price, a fact witness, will testify he
was aware of (F'Keefe’s record, which is a pomary reason he removed (PKeefe from the
scene after being called there, determining there was not enough evidence to make an arrest,
This ofticer put O’Keefe in a car and drove him somewhere clse. [TT1:6.

Mr, O'Keefc brought documents per NRS 47.130, mandating that the Court take
judicial notices of the facts of this case, He argued that Judge Villani denied his dght to delay
this trial. JTT'1:8. Mr. O’Keefe argued that the Statc of Nevada wrongfully charged him with
malice murder based on & battery act of intentional stabbing, He was forced o take the stand
becavse Judge Villani's ruling would not let in any evidence. The jury returned a second

degree murder with a deadly weapon. Nevada Supreme Courr teversed the case based on an
9
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EITOnenUs jury instruction on second degree murder, The jury instrucrion was prejudicial
because evidence did not support it. JTT1:9.

Mr. O'Keefe states that once they charge malice aforethought and premeditated, they
did not have to list bactery; it is duplicity, Jury Instructon 18 had o chance. Gvidence did
not support that Mr. (¥Keefe did any unlawful act, The issuc was addressed, presented, and
reversed on direct appeal. They ruled in Mr. (PKeefe’s favor, Consdrutional collateral
estoppel applies. They said he did no unlawful act, no bartery, JTT1:10,

Thete was 2 second trial and Mr. Lalli recharged Mr. (’Keefe with the same offenses,
after an acquittal; only second degree murder. Right now, they are proceeding on an
unintentonal murder. Mr. O'Keefe argues that is based on nothing. Mr, O’Keefe has this
issue in the Ninth Circuit. Mr, Lalli recharges the same offense, regardless that the acquitral
was not officially entered; US. 1 Green says it does not have to be, JTTI:11. Mr, O'Keefe
states that any issue decided is no longer open to consideration. He claims a rer udizats form
of jeapardy on the same offense. However, they proceed to second trial, O'Keefe argues that
Mr, Lalli should not have been able to use in the second trial the same evidence from the
first teial, bur he did. Mr. Lalli is barred because it is the same standard of proof, The issuc
was decided in Mr, (PKeefe’s favor. [TT1:12,

Citing Byferd 0. Nevada, 994 P.2d at 700, headnote 23, it was argaed that trial court
decisions do not constitute the law of the case, and only the Nevada Supreme Court can
create such on direct appeal. Mr. O"Keefe argued he was acquitted by jury of first degree
intentional stabbing, criminal intent, and that the Nevada Supreme Court acquitted him of

any unlawful aer. JTT1:13. O’Keefe argued Mr. Lalli admitred the NSC is well aware of haw
10
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involuntary manslaughter would become 254 degree murder, believing that the NSC miled the
evidence did not suppore it so the jury could not convict again, (Ykeefe argued that Mr. Lall
used evidence he cannot use, 14 at p. 14,

Mr. (¥Keefe moved to dismiss, arguing that Mr, Lalli has no evidence and thus
cannot proceed on the theary of intentional sibbing, The second trial was a mistrial. I at p.
15. Mr, O'Keefe mok over the case because he is passionate that he did not do this, and was
acquitted, He filed a pretrial petidon under USC §2241, claiming 2 true Double jcopardy
violadon, (3'Keefe argued that Judge Navarro agrees there is 2 Double Jeopardy problem,
for which Mr. (¥Keefe provides the order. Mr. O'Keefe's show cause response was denicd
and, when he did the show cause response in the amended petiton dropping ground 2 and 3
and proceeding with the Double Jeopardy, she denied it. Mr. O'Keefe appealed w the Ninth
Circuir, 14 at p. 16.

The Ninth Circuit granted O'Keefe a hearing on these issues. Pursuanc o Wit »
Lambers (2004}, Judge Paez of the Ninth Circuit stated that if you are a pretrial deminee and
file under §2241, as long as you are not under State court judgment at the time of filing, we
have a tue Double Jeopardy violation. They reversed it, sent it back, ordered full briefing,
and appointed him counsel. 14, ac p, 17.

O'Keefe states Judge Navarro sent him an order two (2) weeks prior (o recusing
herself. Villani recused himself as well, Navarro is married to a top disttict atorney in the
state who is in the ¢riminal division named Mr, Rutledge. 4 ar p. 18.

Mr. Lalli stated that the defendant was charged with open murder in the first trial. fd

at p. 19. The Court gave an insuuction on 2+ degree felony murder, The jusry returned a
1i
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verdict of 2% degree murder. On appeal, NSC said there was no evidence of telony 20
degree murder in the record. The conviction was reversed. Mr. Lalli argues they still have
available to them a theory of 2 degree malice murder, the theory upon which they are
proceeding, Judge Villani denied the same motion Mr. (WKeefe brings now. 14 at p. 20,

Detendant filed a petition with samc issues, which was summarily denjed. The Ninth
Circuic allowed O’Keete ta appeal; however, the federal court did not stay this proceeding,
Mz, O’Keefe sdll has the ability to fully liigate thar issue in the Ninth Circuit, and was
appointed 2 federal arorney to do that. Jd atp. 21,

O'Keete reburted by asking thar all objections during the court, if it proceeds, be
“federalized™ by the court, Mr. Lalli objects thar that is contrary 1o established state law, 14
at p. 22, If the defendant has an objection, he is required to make iz. Blanket obiections are
not allowed in their State jurisprudence, and the Courr is required 1o rule on that. (F'Keefe
argued thar it was a simple procedure, On to the other issues, Mr. Lalli argued that it was a
felony murder theory. Mr. O'Keefe argues that murder is murdet, for double jeopardy
purpuses, fd, at p. 23.

Mr, Lalli argued there was nothing more than the implied malice murder, Instruction
13 states the jury must remember the rule, Murder was by malice aforcthought, cither
expressed or implied. Lalli argued that first degree was expressed malice murder, while
second degree was implied. In the fast track response, the Stare conceded rhat the
instruction was nothing but implied malice murder. (3’Keefe argues that in Instruction 18

under the first theory, Mr. Lalli was rrving to proceeding on malice murder. /. ac p. 24,
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The Court stops O'Keefe, saying that he keeps on tepeating the same thing, The
“federalization™ request was denied. The Court allowed O’Keefe to make his exhibits past of
the record, The modon to dismiss is denied, Id. at p. 26. The court noted that Judge Villani
ruled that the State was allowed to bring before the jury the prior felony conviction for
battery domestic violence, third offcnse, as well as the facts supporting the conviction, 14, at
p. 27. The Courrt declines to revisit Judge Villani’s decision on that. {’Keefe states that, on
February 10%, 2009, the State of Nevada held a Petroelli hearing listing all of his barrery
domestic violence cases and the one felony batrery domestc violence. It was resolved on
March 16%, 2009, Mr. Smith was the prosecutor at the time. Jd, at p. 28.

O'Kecfe argues that issucs were decided upon, that he did not commit a battery,
After the second trial’s mistrial, a third trial was scheduled. 1lc argues they re-litgated two
days late. Id at p. 29, The Court tells O’Keefe that they are not reversing Judge Villani's
ruling. The same argument was made, and he made a ruling, O'Keefe stawes that teial court
decisions do not censtitute the law of the case, and objects heavily. 14 at p, 30,

Rough Draft Transetipt of Jury Trial — Day 2, dated June 12, 2012:
Outsid i

O'Keefe argues that Mr. Lalli is trumping all over his presumption of inngeence by
giving an inference to the jury that a battery domestic violence has been commirted. Jury
Trial Transcdpt Vol. 2 (“JTT2") at p. 2. The NSC adjudicated this issue in the first appeal.
Judge Villani ruled that battery domeste violence never happened; evidence did not support

It beyond a reasonable doubt. Jd arp. 3.
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The Court reviewed the NSC order and reversal and stated that, “(tihe district court
abuses discredon when it instructed the jury that second degree murder includes involuntasy
killing that occurs in the commission of an unlawful act, because the Stare’s charging
document did not allege that O'Keefe killed the vienm while he was committing an unlawful
act. And the evidence prescnted at trial did not support this theory of second degree
murder.” Id, at p, 4. Mr. Lalli keeps inferring that this homicide was committed during a
battery act of intentional stabbing. The jury in the first trial acquitted O'Keefe of intentional
stabbing, They returned a 2™ degree on implied malice. Id at p. 6.

Mr. Lalli argues thar the jury never acquitted O’Keefe of an intentional stabbing, I ar
p. 7. He was acquitted of a willful, deliberate, premeditated killing. The court notes that
(O’Keefe has a contnuing objection. Jd. at p. 8. The court noted the record was preserved.
O’Keete objected to this trial. 14 at p. 538, He objects m some of the evidence under on the
law of the case doctrine again. Id ar p. 59, The court is going to allow Ms. Metcer and Mr.
Lalli to bring thar evidence in, 14 at p. 60.

Opening statements were given. JTT2:61-94. Mr, Talli objeers muldple times
throughout defensc’s opening statements stating OKecfe was murning it into an argument
rather than an opening statement. |TT2:73,89,

Mer. Price is a graveyard lisutenanr at the Enterprise area command with [ VMPD. He
has been employed with Metro for 15 years, In April of 2004, he was a swing shift police

officet at the downtown area command, JTT2:96. Mr. Price testifies he was dispatched on
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Aprl 2: 2004 to 1825 Lewis, Victoria Whitmarsh had alleged her boyfriend, Brian (PKeefe,
had battered her. 4 ar p. 97.

On domestic violence calls, Mr. Price restifies they interview both parties, evaluate
evidence and the scene, and determine from the scene which story corroborates with it,
They lock for bruising, reddening, scratches, cuts. Mr. Price stated they had spoken to both
parties that night Id ar p, 98, There was not enough physical evidence to support the
allegation of battery. Vietoria had no visible injuries, Mr. Price testified that they sugpested
one of them leave the aparument {2 ac p. 99. (O'Keefe stated he would leave, Mr. Price
offered 10 take him wherever he wanted. This is the only time he has ever done that. I ac p.
100,

Mr. Prce testified he drove (’Keefe and dropped him off at the south side of
Charleston at the intersection of Charleston and Hinson. Tt was about 3 ¥ to 4 miles from
1825 Lewis. JTT2:101. Abour an hour and-a-half after dropping him off, they were
dispatched back 1o the same place, Victoda had injuries on her and stated she was victim of
battery again, at the hands of O'Keete. Id. at p. 102

Mr, Price testifics they observed scratches, reddening, puffiness around her eves and
broken glasses, The defendant contacted Victoria’s cell phone and Mr. Price spoke to him
on jt. Mr. Prce testified it was the same voice from the man he dropped off. /4 at p. 103.
The man on the phone stated he was in a bar somewhere close. Mr, Price asked him to
rewurn and give his side of the story, but he refused. He also refused to tell Mr. Price where

he was. They ook a report. Id at p. 104,

15

05602



10

i1

12

13

13

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

The Courr admits the documents, Mr. Price admits to restifying in that marter, He is
shown a copy of the charging document, the information in that case, I4 at p. 106. He also
recognizes the judgment of conviction. Ms, Mercer passes the witness. O'Keefe has no
cross, Id, acp, 107,

Elynne Wamicko Greene's Testimony;

Ms, Greene is sworn in. She is a supervisor of victim’s services in LVMPD. She
provides direct service to victims of all crimes, as well as supervising of staff, Ninety percent
of her work load deals with victims of domestic violence, /d, at p. 108.

She testified to having a bachelor’s in psychology and a master’s degree in counseling.
She worked as a therapist for 15 years and had rrained as a voluateer in domeste viclence
services, Since then, she has run sheiter and worked ar LVMPD. She worked a crisis hotline,
providing resources to those calling, After ceasing to do therapy, she worked in Southern
California with victims and was the director of a ctisis response tear. I at p. 109,

The activities of the crisis responsc teams were to assess and provide resources ar that
exact dme or for the future. They also let them know how the criminal justice system would
operate. The resources provided were safety planning, helping identify lethality tisks, shelter,
suppott groups, and protection order information, 14, ar p. 110.

She ran the shelter for 6 years while with the agency. While working as a therapist,
Ms. Greene mostly saw vietims of domestic violence, as well as children exposed 1o violence.
Id at p. 111, Ms. Green came to Las Vegas twenty years ago and joined LVMPD, She
westified 0 working with about 100 victims of domestic violence per month. She has restified

in court before as an expert. Id ac p, 112,
16
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Ms. Green defines cycle abuse as the relationship berween the victim and the abuser,
starting off with a tension building phase. Vicims often describe thar dme as walking on
eggshelis. The tension finally becomes explosive, which is when there is violence, The last
part is called the honeymoon phase, when the abuser shows guilt or shame. Id. at p. 113,

Otven Hmes, Ms, Greene states that vietims will provioke their ahusers to abuse them,
and get it over with. It can be simple as not cooking dinner right, or guing our with friend
they were told not to, not calling back, not responding 1o text messages, When 4 victim
becomes physical, their intent is often defensive. Id. ar p. 113, One person in a relationship
can have more power; it can be subtle or more obvious, So, when an abuser gets physical, it
is aimed at dominating the other party. They often use verbal intimidaton, J4 at p. 116, Ms,
Greene testifies that these relationships start where there is a lot of atention. Looking back,
victims realize it is controlling and manipulative, rather than sweet. Id. at p. 117.

Grooming is the term used for the process of tearing the vietim down mentally, going
along with physical abuse. Offenders typically prepare their victim by convincing them they
are uniovable and lucky @ have them, If there is separation period, it is common for victims
to try and reestablish a relationship with their abuser. I at p, 118

Ms. Greene wstifies that there are muwldple factors that can make a victim stay with
their abuser; emotional, financial, security. Truly loving the person, even though they are
dangerous, is the number one reason. Embarmssment goes along with being a viedm of
domestic violence. Id at p. 119, When an abuser feels they are losing control, they often
cscalate. O'Keefe had no cross. State calls their next wimess, Cheryl Morris. She is swormn in.

Id atp. 120
17
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